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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of |
Valiant Advanced Science Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of Valiant Advanced Science
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31,
2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of changes in equity) and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below

to be the key audit matters to be cornmunicated in our report.

Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditors Response
No
1. | Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) Obtained an understanding of the

The Company’s financial statements
include significant balances relating to
Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP),
comprising ongoing construction and
installation of manufacturing facilities,

plant and machinery, and related costs with  reference to the

infrastructure. requirements of Ind AS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment and Ind AS 23

The assessment of CWIP involves Borrowing Costs.

significant management judgment Performed substantive testing, on a

relating to the nature of costs capitalized,
allocation of directly attributable
expenses (including borrowing costs),
stage of completion, and assessment of
technical feasibility and future economic
benefits expected from such projects.
Additionally, given the scale and
complexity of certain capital projects,

there exists a risk of incorrect impairment or delays.

capitalization, delays, cost overruns, or Assessed the

iJIlp-‘EI.iI‘IIlE‘:Ilt indicators that may not be basis of allocation of dj_recﬂy
appropriately considered by the attributable costs, including
management. borrowing costs, and tested the

We identified this area as a key audit
matter due to the materiality of the CWIP
balance and the degree of judgment and
estimation involved in its recognition and
presentation in the financial statements.

Company’s internal controls over
capitalization of expenditures and
evaluated the design and
implementation of key controls.

Assessed the Company’s accounting
policy in respect of capitalization of

sample basis, of costs capitalized
during the year to evaluate whether
the expenditures met the criteria for
capitalization.

Reviewed project progress reports,
board minutes, and capital budgets to
evaluate the stage of completion and
to identify any indicators of

calculations where applicable.

Evaluated the appropriateness of
disclosures made in the financial
statements with respect to CWIP,
including ageing of CWIP and projects
in progress, in accordance with

Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection
and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance 1s a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 'material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a

reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

0 prowde those charged with governance with a statement that we have
Q,‘?\ Eoni'pheth with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
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communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive income, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

(g With the respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to tits directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of the Section 197 of the Act.
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The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon

by us.

(h)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations
given to us:
1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Financial Statements

i1. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

1. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company {or, following
are the instances of delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

1V.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, other than disclosed in the notes, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and

|

belief, other than disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been

received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

@1
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(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(11) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(d) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

V. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure B”, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For Rishabh S Vora &8
Chartered Accoun

37 @
| Sdrbitoshomedl e
Rishabh S Vora & J

Proprietor
M. No. 199416

UDIN: <5 9946 RM BB W 3 Z1"2—

Place: Mumbai.

Date: |6-08 -<0S
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Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report - March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Valiant
Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efticient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of

the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether

~dye to fraud or error.
=\

=
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls

over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rishabh S Vor

Céartergd Accou | FN
..-Hs't YT [ \" 'I}
¢ LA IER )
{0 "--, | i " .{:}1’

Rishabh S Vora o
Proprietor N
M. No. 199416

UDIN: 2% 1934 & BN |
Place: Mumbai.

Date: |(6-0% ~-2025
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Annexure B to the Auditor’s Report - March 31, 2025

Annexure B referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of even date to the members of

Valiant Laboratories Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the

information and explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report
that:

(1)

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant &
Equipments;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

(b) As explained to us, the Company has phased programme of physical
verification of Property, Plant & Equipments by which all Property, Plant &

Equipments are verified over a period of three years. In our opinion,
periodicity of the physical verification is reasonable having the regard
to the size of the Company and nature of assets. According to the

information and explanation given to us no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification;

(c) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year:;

(d) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) disclosed in notes to the standalone financial statements are
held in the name of the Company.

(e)  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis
of examination of the records of the Company, there are no Proceedings are
initiated or no pending cases against the company for holding Benami
Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder;
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were noticed on such physical verification, all immaterial discrepancies
have been properly dealt with books of accounts.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our
opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with
such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

(1)) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
examination of books and record by us,

a. A. The Company has not granted any loans

b. The terms and condition cf the grant of loans or advances in the nature of
loans, as referred to

above are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the company.

c. In respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the
repayments are regular.

d. No loans or advances in loans granted by the Company that have fallen due
during the year, have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle
the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

e.. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
that are either

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of Section
185 & Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under
Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013

(vij We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India for the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, this clause is not applicable to Company.

(vi)) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the records of the company examined by us, in respect of Statutory

o] P Page 11 of 15
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(a) The Company generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee State
Insurance, Income tax, custom duty, cess and any other statutory dues to
the appropriate authorities and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory
dues as on the last day of the FY concerned for a period of more than 6
months from the date they became payable.

(b) There is no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state

insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(vii1) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have

(1x)

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payments of interest thereon to any lender;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our audit procedures, we report that the company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our audit procedure, the term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loan were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on Short Term
basis have been used for L.ong Term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures pertormed by us, Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures;

() The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held by the subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
>y during the year.
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(xi)
(&) No fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures performed by us, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this Report.

(xi1) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
the Order 1s not applicable.

(x111) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(x1v)
(@) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit,
issued to the Company cduring the year and till date, in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our Opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence

provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)
(@) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

' _The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
Cop J;_Bu\r audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

W %
3

Page 13 of 15



Audit Report: FY 2024-25
Valiant Advanced Science Private Limited

(xvii1) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date;

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(@) This Clause is not applicable to the Company. There are no unspent
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than

ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of

Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of
the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) There is no amount remaining unspent under section (6) of section 135 of
Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project

(xxi). This clause 1s not applicable to the company as there is no Qualification or
Adverse Remarks in an Audit Report

Proprietor :
M. No.199416, ., .~

UDIN: 28 1946 BMIBR W 321 2

Place: Mumbai.

Date: \‘6 --C)g r'-?—f‘—
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CIN - U24290MH2022PTC386388

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 (Rs in Lakhs)
ol e Padiculars | Notes | March31,2025 |  March31,2024
L. |ASSETS
Non-Current assets
(a) Property, plant & equipment 2 1,838.69 1,844.67
(b) Right to Use-Assets - -
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress 2 15,561.45 4,243.02
(d) Goodwill - -
(e) Other Intangible Assets 2 332 -
(f)Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3 1.03
(g) Other non-current Assets 4 75.09 79.81
(h) Other Financial Assets 5 45.00 2,098.12
e Tglal-Nu_n-Current assets - 17,524.58 _ 8,265.61
Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 3.30 -
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Trade Receivables 7 2.38 0.57
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 11.76 949.15
(iv) Bank Balances Other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 4,853.49 -
(v) Loans - -
(c) Other Current assets 10 2,586.08 677.67
(d) Current Tax Assets (Net) 11 72.03 0.19
~ |Total Current assets il - 7,529.04 . 1,627.57
. |TotalAssets = . = . . 25,053.63 9,893.18
Il.  |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 3.12 1.92
(b) Other Equity 13 16,495.36 8,093.32
~ |Total Equity o ~ 16,498.48 1 8,095.24
Liabilities
Non-Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 4,494.87 1,526.28
(i1) Lease Liabilities - -
(b) Provisions 15.1 4.27 -
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 16 - 0.37
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities - -
~ |Total non-current liabilities . 4.499.14 1,526.66
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 17 1,685.57 138.75
(ii) Lease Liabilities - -
(iii) Trade Payables
A) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro enterprises and
and small enterprises 371.67 -
B) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 1,760.07 116.26
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 19 28.75 7.00
(b) Other Current liabilities 20 203.49 9.27
(c) Provisions 15.2 6.46 -
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - -
. | Total currentliabilities =~ = T .. 405601 @ 27129
: _. Total Equity and Liabilities - 25,053.63 | 989318

The above statement of Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with

Previous Year's figures are regrouped / rearranged wherever required.
As per our report of even date attached

Mr. Rishabh S Vora
Chartered Accountants |
(Firm Regn No. 153261W) = '

Propreitor
M. No.199416

Place : Mumbai

Date- 16th May, 2025 o
UDIN - 25199416BMIBBW3212

the accompanying notes.

For Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited

¢, S\oha

Mr. Santosh Shantilal Vora

Director

DIN - (07633923

Mr, Paresh Shashif\'aﬁi Shah
Director

DIN - 08291953
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Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited
CIN - U24290MH2022PTC386388
Statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2025

(Rs in Lakhs)

. ratticulam

11

E Nﬂt_ES_ e

 For the period
~ March 31, 2025

Revenue from operations
Other Income

i .IIIfE..f::.

22
23

2.02
0.67

™

~ For the period
- March 31, 2024

0.48

Total II’lCﬂIl‘lE L _ L T e . : e S il

IV

|[EXPENDITURE

Cost of Materials Consumed

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Work-in-Progress
Stock-In-Trade and Work-In-Progress

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization

Other Expenses

269

-~ 0.48

24
25

26

27
28

1.9Z

0.01

6.80
0.44

0.37

3.:5.;::_:1:5. PrﬂfitBEfﬂrETﬂX : : 'EE'-.;'::}::::::E :

i 9.-1? SR

Tax Expenses
Current Tax

Deferred Tax

 [: : : -; (6.48)|

(1.38)

Total Tﬂx EXPEHSE i L

Pl'ﬂfit fﬂm - . ST

i 033

Other Comprehensive Income
(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plan
Fair value changes of various Financial instruments

(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit &
loss

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plan
Fair value changes of various Financial instruments

(Total of profit and other

_|Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of bax
~ [Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VII)

year) n

e

comprehensive income for the

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10/- each (PY: Rs. 10/- each)
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

29

(12.24)
(12.24)

The above statement of Profit and Loss should be read in co

As per our report of even date attached

Mr. Rishabh S Vora
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No. 153261W)
Propreitor

M. No.199416

Place : Mumbai
Date -

UDIN -

16th May, 2025 .
25199416BMIBBW 3212

njunction with the accompanying notes.

For Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited

Ss\ono

Mr. Santosh
Shantilal Vora

Director
DIN - 07633923

l;vlr. Paresh
Shashikant Shah

Director
DIN - 08291953




Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited

CIN -U24290MH2022PTC386388

Statement of Cash Flow for the periods ending on March 31, 2025 (Rs in Lakhs)
) PARTICULARS March 31, 20?5 March 31, 2024

A. |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -
Net Profit before tax and extra ordinary items (6.48) (1.71)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 6.80 1.77
Interest Paid - -
Gain/(Loss ) on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) : i
Rent Income - -
Operating Profit /(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 0.32 0.05
Adjusted for:
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables (1.82) (0.57)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (3.30) -
(Increase)/ Decrease Loans - -
(Increase) / Decrease Other Current Assets (1,908.41) (671.13)
(Increase) / Decrease Other non-Current Assets 4.71 (26.58)
(Increase) / Decrease Other Financial Assets 2,053.12 (869.52)
(Increase)/Decrease Other Current Tax Assets (71.84) (0.19)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payable 2,015.48 110.62
Increase/(Decrease) in Lease Liabilities - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 10.73 -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 194.23 (3.78)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 21.75 5.06
Cash generated from o perations 2,314.96 (1,456.03)
Income Tax Paid - -
Net cash from ggeratiﬂé activities 2,314.96 (1,456.03)

B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (including capital advances) (11,322.73) (4,209.33)
Bank Balances Other than Cash & Cash Equivalents (4,853.49) -
Sale of property, plant & equipment . E
Net Cash used in investing_ activities (16,176:22) (4,209.33)

€. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Interest Paid - -
Proceeds / (Repayments) of Borrowings ( net ) 4,515.40 (1,707.02)
Proceeds / (Repayments) of share capital 8,408.47 _ 8,094.24
Net Cash used in financinﬁ activities 12,923.88 6,525.98
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (937.38) 860.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 949.15 88.53
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 11.76 949.15

As per our report of even date attached

Rishabh S Vora & Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn No. 153261W)
Propreitor 2

M. No.199416 | . *

Place ;: Mumbai

Date-  16th May, 2025
UDIN-  25199416BMIBBW3212

The above statement of Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited

S \Joho

Mr. Santosh Shantilal Vora

Director
DIN - 07633923

W:;;«
Mr. Paresh Shashikant Shah
Director

DIN - 08291953




Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited
CIN - UZ*IEF!}MHEEZZPTCSBEJB&
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period March 31, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital

Current Repn::rrtmg Period

{Hs In Lalchs}

.......
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ol e I et " i o o Ry migh ey gl - X o o - o A o 3
= i B 3 S ¥ I ! e L S e
: oo Particulars i
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| 'Bﬂam:e as nn Apnl 1,

:har: capital due to

Changeu in equuy | Reststated Balance at|
lma.r l:un.'ent repnrhng

_ prior period errors

_ periods

- Changes in eqmty
shm capital dunng

~ the period

!ia,lamze -'is ﬂn 31-!]35-

Drdir.'.uar}l.' Equity .E'J-rh areé

IEIJ

1.00

"1.00

Share Ca pltdl Pend mg Allntment

Optionally Convertible Equity Shares (Instruments entirely equity in nature) 0.51 - 0.51 0.51
[Right Share issue 0.40 0.40 1.20 1.60

'l‘utal

........
..........

AT

Previous Reporting Period

...............
..................

Chinges in eqmty.

_ prior period errors

Reststated Balance at|

: sh-lre capital due to | thr: ::umeni repnrt_mg

penuds

Ehanges in equity
ﬁhare capital dunng |

__the period

‘Balance as on 31.03-

'Dn.:[i.nary Equity Shares

1.00

1.00

Optionally Convertible Equity Shares (Instruments entirely equity in nature) - - - 0.51 0.51
Right Share issue - 0.40 0.40

Share Ca pltal Fenclm g Ailntment
Total & i

100

T i

092

g

B. Other Equity

..............
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REEEH"E and surpjlus e

Muney Rﬁ:ewed
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................

Balance as at 315I Mmh 2(]24

‘Hi'.l? e

Changes in accounting pﬂllnes and pnnr permds errors
Restated balance at April 2024

Net profit for the year

Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) on defined benefit plan (net off tax)
Security Premium

Call in Advance against Right Issues

Issue during the year

9,351.74

(5.10)
0.46

-

(0.59)

(5.10)
(0.14)
9,351.74
677.37
(1,621.84)

Balance as at 31st March 2025 D

- 16,502.68 |

= 15,49535

1 The above Statement of Changes in Equity be read in conjunction with the ac
2 Previous Year's figures are regrouped / rearranged wherever required.

As per our report of even date attached hereto,

Mr. Rishabh S Vora :
Chartered Accountants ——
(Firm Regn No. 153261W)
Propreitor

M. No.199416

Place : Mumbai
Date - 16th May, 2025
UDIN - 25199416BMIBBW 3212

companying notes,

For Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited

SSVona

Mr. Santosh Shantilal Vora

Director
DIN - 07633923

o~
Mr. Paresh Shashikant Shah
Director
DIN - 08291953




Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited F.Y. 2024-25

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER RELATED NOTES

Corporate Information

Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited ("VASPL" or "The Company" ) is Private limited entity incorporated in India dated July 08, 2022, The registered office of
the Company is located at 109, UDYOG KSHETRA, MULUND GOREGAON LINK ROAD, MULUND WEST MUMBAI Mumbaij City MH 400080 IN, The Company

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31.3.2025 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors in its meeting
held on 16th May, 2025

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates And Judgements

1

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
Statement of Compliance

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ended March 31, 2025, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date,
and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as ‘Standalone Financial Statements’)

Classification of Assets and Liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or hon-current as per company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of
Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013 Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Basis of Measurement

These Financial statement are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instrument, which are measured at fair
value, which are disclosed in the financial statement.

Functional and Presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees ('INR ) which is the functional currency of the company and all values are rounded to the nearest rupees in
lakhs except otherwise indicated

Use of accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management judgements, estimates and assumptions that impacts the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying notes thereon, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that might require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future periods.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial Statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates,
Judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of financial Statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made 45 Mmanagement becomes aware of circumstances surrounding
the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statement in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements,

The following are areas involving critical estimates:

Impairment

Accounting for Defined benefit plans

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - Fair Valuation of Financial instruments
Valuation of Inventories

Judgmenis

The company's management has made the following judgement, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the separate financial
statements, while formulating the company's accounting policies.

The following are areas involving critical judgments;

Leases

Estimation of income tax payable and income tax expense in relation to an uncertain tax position

Provisions and Contingencies

Property, plant and equi pment (PPE) and Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of tax /duty credit availed, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises of purchase price inclusive of non creditable taxes, commissioning expenses, elc. up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. when significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company derecognizes the replace part. and recognizes the new part with its own
associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

Long term lease arrangements of land are treated as property, plant and equipment, in case such arrangements result in transfer of control and the present value of
the lease payments is likely to represent substantially all of the fair value of the land.

Capital Work In Progress represents expenditure incurred on Capital assets that are under construction or are pending Capitalisation and includes Project expenses
pending allocation, Project expenses pending allocation are apportioned to the property, Plant and equipment of the Project proportionately on capitalisation,

Borrowing cost on property, plant and equipment's are capitalised when the relevant recognition criteria specified in IND AS 23 Borrowing cost is met,
Decommissioning costs, if alty. on property, plant and equipment are estimated at their present value and capitalised as part of such assets.

An item of property, pldnt and equipment and any significant part im'tidll}r recognised is derecngnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected with the carrying amount of any component accounted for as a Separale asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance are charge to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. A

The residual value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are 'T:Iéwed at each finawcial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Property, plant and €quipment existing on the date of transifion #laccounted on deemed Cost basis by applying para D7AA in accordance with the exemption
provided in IND AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Syan ' | '




Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/ duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative
impairment. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a
part of the cost of the intangible assets. Intangible development costs are capitalised as and when technical and commercial feasibility of the asset is demonstrated
and future economic benefits are probable.,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite, Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research and Development

demonstrate;-

development costs can be measured reliably;-

the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;

commercially feasible;

future economic benefits are probable; and

the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset,

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset Is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit.
Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of

another asset. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM) method as per rates prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except in the
respect of the following assets, where useful life of asset is different than those prescribed in Schedule II of the Act.

Particulars Depreciation

Factory Building (Useful 30 Years ) Over its useful life as assessed
Plant & Machinery (Useful life 19 years) Over its useful life as assessed
Vehicle (Useful life 10 years) Over its useful life as assessed
Leasehold Land Over the period of lease term
Impairement

The Company assesses at each reporting the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount, Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent that the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is higher of net selling price of an asset or its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Non-current assets held for sale

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The determination of fair value less costs to sell includes use of
management estimates and assumptions. The fair value of the assets held for sale has been estimated using valuation techniques (including income and market
approach), which include unobservable inputs. Non-current assets and disposal group that ceases to be classified as “Held for Sale” shall be measured at the lower of
carrying amount before the non-current asset and disposal group was classified as “Held for Sale” and its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision
not to sell. Recoverable amounts of assets reclassified from “Held for Sale” have been estimated using the Management’s assumptions.

Retirement and other em ployee benefits

The Company recognizes employee benefits as per the principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 - Employee Benefits, as set out below:
Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those which are due to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related services, These include salaries, wages, bonuses, performance incentives, compensated absences (if expected to be availed within 12 months), and other non-

monetary benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits is recognuzed as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the related service is rendered.

Defined Contribution Plans

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan, in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The liability is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. The defined benefit liability recognized in the balance sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any).

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI) and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Termination Benefits i .

Termination benefits are recognized as a liability and expense wl |_ Cnmpétﬁjf ‘11'5531 present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; an ‘amount can be reliaﬂlx estimated. Termination benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
«Otherwise, they are measuged on a discounted basis.

within twelve months are recognized at the undiscounted amo
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other

borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred

In determining the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization during a period, any income earned on the temporary investment of those borrowings is
deducted from the borrowing costs incurred.

Inventories
[tems of inventories are valued lower of cost or estimated net realisable value as given below.
Raw Materials and Packing Materials:

Raw Materials and packing materials are valued at Lower of Cost or market value, (Cost is net of taxes duty and wherever applicable). However materials and other
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold
at or above cost. Costs are determined on FIFO method

Work in process:
Work in process are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is computed on weighted average method.

Finished Goods and Semi finished goods :-

Finished Goods and Semi finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realised value. The cost is computed on weighted average method and includes cost of
materials, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in acquiring the inventory and bringing them to their present location and condition. Taxes is considered as cost
for finished goods, whenever applicable.

Stores and Spares:
Stores and spare parts are valued at lower of purchase Costs are determined on Weighted Average method and net realisable value.

Traded Goods:
Traded Goods are valued at lower of purchase cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposit with banks, which are short term, highly liquid investment, that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial assets, financial liabilities, equity instruments and impairment of financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial
asset or financial liability.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial
assets. The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading in other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on
initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Equity Investments

All equity investments (excluding the investments in Subsidiaries) in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised
in the OCIL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL Category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Other financial liabilities (including loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts
and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and amounts paid or received that form an integral part

of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost on initial recognition.

Interest expense (based on the effective interest method), foreign exchange gains and losses, and any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments |

De-recognition of Financial Instruments:

The Company derecognises a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the Financial Asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the
transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the f
inancial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognise such financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated Liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. y

— .

4] é".-'CnﬁlpE'"p}{a Dalance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
rahother from the-).qme lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
s treated as the derecogition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received net of direct issue cost.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of all Financial Assets subsequent to initial
recognition other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment
loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. For other financial assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk since its
initial recognition. If there is significant increase in credit risk since its initial recognition full lifetime ECL is used. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

The Company recognizes a provision when: it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is likely that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past event, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably,

Contingent Assets

A contingent assets is not recognised unless it become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefit will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable,
contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date

Fair Value Measurement

The company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: -

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.”

A fair measurement of a non financial assets takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
All Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole :-

Level1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly and indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly and indirectly unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

Revenue Recognition

Ind AS 115 applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. It also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

Sale of goods : Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products being sold is transferred to our customer and when there are no longer any
unfulfilled obligations. Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/ arrangements with the customers as the service is performed and there
are no unfulfilled obligations. The Company recognises revenue from goods sold and services rendered at Transaction Price which is the amount of consideration the
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding the amounts collected on behalf of a third party.,
The Transaction price is net of discounts, sales incentives, rebates granted, returns, sales taxes, GST and duties and any other recoverable taxes

Generally, in case of domestic sales, performance obligations are satisfied when the goods are dispatched or delivery is handed over to transporter, revenue from
export of goods is recognised at the time of Bill of lading or airway bill or any other similar document evidencing delivery thereof.

Interest Income : Interest income from a financial asset is recogrused when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income : Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Export benefits : Export incentives are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exporls
made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Taxes

Tax expenses comprise Current Tax and Deferred Tax :
Current Tax

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of estimated ta 'lﬂ&i{ﬂ:ﬂﬂlﬂ and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the
relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments/ appeals;> i

Current income tax relating to item recognized directly in equity .is r
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situalio

where appropriate.

J kF F .,L L
ed in equity Elnr:pq{‘ll in the statement of profit and loss. Management periodically

Q\wtﬁch applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
Py
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The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amount in the standalone financial statement for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or liability settled, based on the tax
rates (tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The break-up of major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date has been arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets and liabilities
where the Company have a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities and where such assets and liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the
same governing taxation laws. For items recognised in OCI, deferred tax is also recognised in OCI

Leases :
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred

and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease Liability comprise the following: -

* Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

* Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date:

* Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

* The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of -use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and
borrowings’ in the statement of financial position.

Government Grants :

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all
attached conditions

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit
and loss in a systematic basis over the expected life of the related assets and presented within other income,

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit and Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Iransaction denominated in foreign currencies is recorded at the exchange rate that approximates the actual rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary
item denominated in foreign currency remaining unsettled at the year-end are translated at year end rates. Differences arising on settlement or conversion of
monelary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of transactions. premium in case of forward contracts is dealt with in the Profit and Loss Account proportionately over
the period of contracts. The exchange differences arising on settlement/ translation are dealt with in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial
statements are approved by the Board of Directors in case of a company, and, by the corresponding approving authority in case of any other entity for issue.

Iwo types of events can be identified:
(a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events after the reporting period); and
(b) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after the reporting period).

Earnings Per Share :

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Recent Pronouncements .

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to theexlstmg?l@m;ds under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not nofified any new mhﬁdq@i or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
Company o

!

’ \
1%
!

Previous Year
Previous Year's figures are regrouped / rearranged wherever required.
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Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(Rs in Lakhs)

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Particulaps = e

| March 31,2025

 March 31,2024

Opening Balance
- On Fixed Assets
- On Others

(0.37)
(0.81)
222

-

Total Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

- 1.03

Other Non Current Assels

...... Pﬂﬁlﬁfﬁ]ﬁfﬁ-: o e R

~ March 31, 2025

- March 31, 2024

thﬂ' Non {;unent.:’.gs.etls
(b) Security Deposits with Electricity Department & Other Departments

75.09

7981

Unsecured, Considered Good
Total =

- 75.09 |

S 798

Other Financial Assels

March 31, 2025

- March 31,2024

Other Financial Assels

45.00

2,098.12

(a) Capital Advances
Total

2,098.12

Inventories (at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars ~ ©

L 5 b R B A R

.....

| March3i, 2025

~ March 31,2024

Inventories
Raw Material

Work-in-Progress ;s !
Finished Goods ) i
Packing Materials . i
Stores & Spares i i
Tﬂtal Egeal SRR 3.30 | #

Pﬂﬂl{‘u]m e e

~ March 31, 2025

- March 31,2024

Trade receivables
(a) Receivables outstanding for more than six months

(b) Other receivables (Unsecured considered good)

2.38

0.57

Total - "Z::?§:1'§'§§3f:'-. R

2381

R G‘S?

(a) Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers, there is no financing component in the contract.

(b) The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and reco
recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables. The application of the sim
impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. ECL impairme

nt loss allowance

Loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c). Movement in impairmem allowance on trade receivables

gnition of impairment losses on trade receivables. The Company follows the simplified approach for
plitied approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
(or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Particulars

March 31, 2025

~ March 31,2024

Balance at the beginning of the year

Allowances / (write back) during the year - -
Written off against past provision - -
Balance at the end of theyear . -

(d) Trade receivables (current) ageing :

As at 31st March, 2025

= g Pap ; ¥ n T TTorT

~ Qutstanding for followi

........

__NotDue

Less than 6 Month

6 Month to 1 Year

ng periods from due date of Eﬂ:mem_s”-'- s

12 ear

1.09

1.30

(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - . g
(iif) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - -
1.09 1.30 - - 2.38
Less - Impairment Allowance - - . : 2
Tﬂl-ﬂ.l ; e e e S Sy osoasmetcen e s l.ﬂ:‘.i ..... 130 | # S b 233

As at 31 March, 2024

__Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

S e e Less than 6 Month | 6 Month to 1Year'|  12Year |
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 0.57 - - - 0.57
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - -
(iif) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - -

0.57 - - - 0.57
Less - Impairment Allowance - - - - -
Total s 2o 087 - 3 2 ST et 057

i L =
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Cash aml Cash Equlvalenis

i Rarticulan T

March 31, 2025

- March 31, 2024

Cash ind Cash Equwalents |
(a) Balances with banks
(b) Cash on hand

9.00
2.76

946.50
2.65

Total

- 11.76

94915

Pilrl:u u]ars

| March 31, 2025

| March31,2024

ﬂther Bank Balanu:es
(a) Earmarked balances with banks : Balance in Dividend Accounts

4,853.49

[b]leEd De;msns wuh maturlt}r fnr ]eg:-: than twelve mcnths
Total e : :

4,853.49

Other Current Assets

. Paticulars

| March 31,2025

- March 31, 2024

-Dther Cull-rlu.enl ﬁssets ]

(a) Balances with Central Excise / Service Tax/VAT/Goods & Service Tax
(b) Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received

(c) Prepaid Expenses

(d) Preliminary Expenses

(e)Loan to Employees

(f) Other Receivable

(g) Advance to Suppliers

2,545.34

40.44

6/7.28
0.34

-

0.05

{h]Accrued Interest on FD

L258.081

- 677.67

Current Tax Assets (Net)
Conaa s Patealare

‘March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

Other Current Assets

72.03

0.19

Advance Tax and Tax Dedmted at SGUI'CE {Net Df Prcwlsmn}
Total e

aamatl

- 0.19




12 |Equity Share Capital
12.1 [Authorised Share Capital

(Rs in Lakhs)

~ March 31,2025

March31,2024 =

Particulars

 Number |

Amount

~ Number = |

__Amount

Authorised:
33,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

3,300,000
2,200,000

330.00
220.00

3,300,000
2,200,000

330.00
220.00

22,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Total s A

5500000

550.00

Exm].r[m

. 550.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up:

March 31, 2025

~ March31,2024

Particulars

~ Number

_Amount |

Number = |

~ Amount

Equity Share Capital.
Add: Equity Shares allotted during the year
Add: Right Share issue during the year

26,030

10,000

16,030

1.00

0.40

Add: Issue of Bonus Shares

Toal(A)

26,030

26,030

- 1.40

Optionally Convertible Preference Share Capital
Add: Preference Shares allotted during the year

3,130

5,130

0.51

Total(B)

Add: Optionally Convertible Preference Shares allotted du ring the year

5130 |

5130

0.51

Total (A+B)

31,160

o 31,160

- 1.92

12.2 [Reconciliation of Equity & Optionally Convertible Preference Shares Outstanding

A ordmary Eq“il’}?ﬁhﬂesﬂumhndmg

o Marchi31,2024

__Number |

coAmount

- Number |

__Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: Equity Shares allotted during the year

Add: Optionally Convertible Preference Shares allotted during the year
Add: Right issue during the year

Add: Issue of Bonus shares

26,030

1.40
1.20

10,000

16,030

1.00

0.40

TR

e 261

26,030 |

140

B |Optionally Convertible Preference Share Capital
Add: Preference Shares allotted during the year

0.51

5;-[3[]

0.51

Tﬂtﬂl IB) R e

Add: Optionally Convertible Preference Shares allotted during the year

0.51

0.51

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

aw

o 31,160

1.92

12.3 [Details of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Ordinary Equity Shares == = T i

e :M'uth 31,2025

March 31,2024 S

| Number

. %of i-Iﬁldi_nE_. -

 Number

o %of Holding

- Valiant Laboratories Limited

31,160

100.00%

31,160

100.00%

12.4 |Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
Equity Shares

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares

The Company has only one class of Shares referred to as Equity Shares having par value of Rs.
company declares and pays dividend in Indian Ru pees. The dividend proposed by the Board
Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaini
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The OCPS issued are convertible at the option of the shareholder into 1 equity shares

10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing

ng assets of the Company, after




13 Other Equll}r
Particulars | March31,2025 | March31,2024
a. Securities Prenuum 16,502.68 7,150.94
b. Call in Advance against Right Issues - 94447
¢. Retained Earning (6.73) (2.09)
d. Other Cnmprehenswe Incume (0.59) -
Tntal O[her Equllx o e oaa  16,495.36 : 3409332
a. Securities Premmm
Particulars =~ = __March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Opening Balance 7,150.94 -
Add - Reserve During the year 9,351.74 7,150.94
Less - Bonus Share issue durmg the }rear -
Closing Balance L 16,502.68 : 3_?,150,94_
b Callin Advance agamst R:ght lssues
Particulars e i ~ March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Opening Balance 944 .47 -
Add - Reserve During the year 677.37 944 .47
Less - Issue durmg the year (1,621.84)
Closing Balance - . w4 94447
¢. Retained Earning ,
Particulars ~ March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Retained Earning
Opening Balance (Surplus in Profit & Loss) (2.09)
Add: Net Profit for the year (5.10)
Less: Remeasurement (Loss) on defined benefit plan (net off tax) 0.46 (2.09)
Add: Transferred frum Other Cnmprehenswe Inmme on dlSPﬂSaI of FVOCI eqmt}r mstruments
CIDSIII_E BﬂlﬂIlEE e T e i e e ‘6.73} : (2.“9}
d. Other Cumprehenswe lncume {OCI}
Particulars e b g e o i | March 31,2025 i Mil_l:"lih. 31; 2024
Opening Balance - -
Add: Fair value changes of various Financial intruments (net off tax) - -
Add: Remeasurement (Loss) on defined benefit plan (net off tax) (0.46)
Less: Remeasurement (Loss) on defined benefit plan (net off tax) (0.14)
Less : Transfer to retamed earmngia on d.J.SP{}Sal Df FVOCI eqm t}r Lnstruments - -
Clusulg Balance i ' . G G i - (0.59) -




Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

14 Non - current Borrowings (Rs. In Lakhs)
ok :_.:___-a :Pil.l'ﬂmli.rl’i~ ........... .- Miﬂ:i]m_‘.m Mﬂﬂhﬂ,;ﬂ“
Non-Current Liabilities-Financial Liabilities
Borrowings-Non Current
Secured- At Amortised Cost 4,494 87 1,526.28
Loan from Felated party .

Unsecured Loans . "
Footnotes:

e L2 R e

As at March 31, 2025 Rs. 4,494.87 Lakhs of the total outstanding borrowing,
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

s were secured by a charpe on property, plant and equipment, inventories, receivables and other current assets.

Valiant Laboratories Limited (Holding Company) has given a corporate guarantee of Rs.100 crore out of which we have availed Rs. 61.80 crore as on st March, 2025

Rupee term loans as on 31 March 2025, amounting to Rs.6,180.44 lakhs were secured by a charge on immovable & movable properties including movable machinery, spares, tools & accessories, ranking, pari

passu inter-se. The term loan was originally payable across 48 equal monthly instalments starting from December 2024 till November

2028 as mentioned in the table below:

Secured Loan Monthly Repayment Start Kepayment End |

Loan Account No. Taken Interest Rate | Installment Date Date
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-491 449.63 8.94 10.22 31/12/2024 30,11,/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-403 37.41 R.88 0.85 31/12/2024 30/11/2028
HS5BC Term Loan (006-449433-494 297.05 8,93 6.75 31/12/2024 a0/11/2028
HSBC Term Loan (06-449433-495 161.63 8.92 3.67 31/12/2024 30/11/2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-196 210.21 8.86 4.78 31/12/2024 30,11/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-497 370.35 8.93 8.42 31/12/2024 30/11/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-498 411.27 89 9.39 31/12/2024 30/11/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-499 397 64 8.96 9.04 31/12/2024 30411/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-500 489.9 8.79 11.13 31/12/2024 30/11/2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-501 30.67 8.79 0.70 31/12/2024 30/11/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-502 584.12 8.77 13.28 M/12/2024 30/11/2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-504 441.90 8.55 10.04 31/12/2024 30/11 /2028
HSBC Term Loan (06-449433.505 755.45 8.60 17.17 31/12/2024 30/11/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-506 458.33 8.54 10.42 31,/12/2024 3011/ 2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-508 636.52 H.40 14.47 31/12/2024 30/11/2028
HSBC Term Loan 006-449433-510 446.35 8.38 10.14 31/12/2024 30/11/ 2028
Gulshm:li.n; Loan Amount till 31.03.2025 6,180.44

Note - The above mentioned Term Loan table includes Rs.1,685.57 Lakhs of Current Borrowings of Secured Loan and Rs. 4,494.86 Lakhs of Non Current Borrowings.

15 Provisions

Non Current

151 [ParMlenlars 0 e naass _March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
- Provision for Employee Benefit Expense - -
- Provision for Gratuity -
- Provision for Leave Encashment 4.27
S R S AR - SPETY B :
Current

152 |Particulare’ 0 oo el - March 31, 2025 Man:h:?l,:!ﬂl-l
- Provision for Employes Benefit Expense -
- Provision for Gratuity (2.12) -
- Provision for Leave Encashment 0.30
- Provision for Bonus 8.27 -
Tﬂ'l] ",.l .-a.‘__ i ,.__ T -..;:- T ﬁ{ﬁ ‘
Footnoles ;

(i) The Company presents provision for gratuity and leave salaries as current and non-current based on acluarial valuation considering estimates of availment of leave, separation of employees, elc.
(i)} Detailed disclosure in respect of post-retirement defined benefit schemes is provided in Note 26.

16 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Parficulare o0 o h praniiniamas “March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Opening Balance - -

- On Fixed Assets =

- Un Others - 037

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (nety . = 5 TEEE & rd
17 BnnnwinEE-Current

Particulars Bl March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Borrowings-Current

Secured - At Amortised Cost 1,685.57 138.75

Cash Credit Facility - =

Total = 0 o e ~1,685.57 138.75
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(1)

(ii)

19

21

Trade Pljl'ahlﬂ

Pitﬂmhll

. March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Tr-l-cle P-i_’fiblﬂ-
Trade payables

Enterprises; and

(a) Total Quistanding Dues of Micro enterprises and Small

(b) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro enlerprises

I7.67 :

1,760.07 116.26

and snml’i Pntf_-rprmm

Total

oAl e

Trade payables ageing;
As at 31st March, 2025

Particalars:. - 00 B e e T T e
L e S e e e o g o W -

: Dutnt.mding for the I:nIInwin; periods I-'rnm due :hte of payment L

| Unbilled [ NotDue | Slyear | 12yem

2 -3 year

- Hs.m:i elirer

= 3N.44 0.23 -

I71.67

(ii) Others - 222 82 1,531.35 5.00) 2 u 1,760.07
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - . . -
{iv) Disputed Dues - Others - . . " .

B O ey

e ST

Ag al Ist "Hlan:h. H’I!.l

l‘.l.rl.il:ulin

_j:_...._.. e
5 .

D Guliundiqg_fnrﬂufnllnwingpeﬂndsfmm dueﬂ:aienfpaynmnt

.f:Uaniled Hﬂﬂuc _<lyear | = 1-2year

23 year

'“:.-3'1;-!.1:'1:” :

. TOTAL

) MSME —

(ii) Others 90,98 25.29 - - - 116.26

(i1i) Disputed Dues - MSME - - 5

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - a )
e Lo 2098 [ a8 e - - 11626

Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (as amended)

MashILNS |

- March 31,2024

(i)

(b) Interest on (i)(a) above :
(i1) The amount of interest paid along with the principal payment made to the
supplier -
(i) Amount of interest due and payable on delayed payments ‘
(iv) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable for the earlier years -
(v} Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
- Principal 371.67 -
- Interest . -

(a) Principal amount remaining, unpaid to any supplier

I71.67

Piltiruhﬂ

Other Fm.im:‘ial th]liillﬂ-

| March31,2025 | March31, 2024

Creditors for Capital Goods

Other Flmnl:iil thllitiﬂ

Other Payables

28.75

2.00

Tobal i e

28.75

- 7.00

Other Cl.urent thi]lhﬂ

.......... —_————————
i an ] "y d. I ", e R T T T
-----.::“..-"::'-..:'-! DSt R A s

o A e - RS, o s

e ';.-::_;: Hatchal,lﬂﬂ

March 31, 20

Dthn- Eum:nl Li.l bilitiu

Statutory Dues
Advam‘e- Imrn -'.'.‘ ualumcrn

14.53
188 96

9.27

Total

20349

9.

{  March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Current Tax I.iahil]lieu {Neﬂ

Provision for Tam!s {NH nf Tax pﬂld}

Total: s Seb e
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Valiant Advanced Sciences Private Limited
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

Revenue from Operations (Rs In Lakhs.)
L TR puﬂcu_h" Lhmhﬂ‘l,.!ﬂl'.i MI:':IIJLMH .

(a) Sale of Manufactured Products 2.02 0.48
i(b) Other revenue from operation -

{c) Sale of Traded Products = .
Tﬂ“l e R L e i A g SRR ; 202 HE 048

Other Inlu.'unw : - . M : Marc

(a) Interest Income
Investments in debt instruments measured al fair value - .
Interest on Security Deposit 067
Other financial assets carried at amortised cost s

0.67 -

(b) Other Non-operating Income
Rent Income " &
Foreipn Exchange Gain/ (Loss) " S
Gain on Finacial Instrument - .
Sale of Scrap - .
Miscellaneous Income i a

(d) Other Gains and Losses
Net gains (Losses) on fair value cha ngtes through FVTPL 4 -

Total e e R e R b T G R St e T e 067 | R

Cost of Materials Consumed
i U e ey e e S . March31,20255 | March 31, 2024
s D e e R e S T e e e R T L b g e S e E L B s

g ey IS " e e R e Yae e L L] ) fu - s g, s o . e "y r. o o " a1 E i} u " . L

Cost of Materials Consumed
(a) Kaw Material

Opening, Stock . 3
Add: Purchases During the Year 5.21 0.37
Less: Closing Stock 3.30 -
Raw Material Consumed 1.92 0.37

(b) Packing Material
Opening Stock - .
Add: Purchases During the Year ’ i
Less: Closing Stock . .
Packing Consumption . .

TOTAL 1.92 0.37

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress
G G retiiane s ey | March3l, 20

Ry A .:E-:-.r:,':: B

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Work in Progress
Stock at the end of the year

Finished Goods (including goods-in-transi t) . -
Work-in-Progress

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Work in Progress
Stock at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods (including goods-in-transit) . ’
Work-in-Progress ; ”

TOTAL - -

Employee Benefit Expenses

e L e | fateddew e  March31,205 | March 31,2020

(a) Salaries and wapes - . 0.0
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds -
{c) Stalf welfare expenses n 3

SH N R Lasssssennnnl e e s, L B e

A Defined benefit pll.l.'l.l
(ii) Post-employment benefits (Gratuity)

The company provides for gra tuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Em ployees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gratuily payable on retirement,/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years ol service. The gratuity planis a
funded plan and the company makes contributions to recognized funds in India. The company maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of ime based on estimations of expected gratuity

paymenis.

Aloresaid post-employment benefit plans typically expose the Company W actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rale risk, salary risk and longevity risk.

(i) Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government bond yields. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will

creale a plan deficit,
(i) Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability, However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of plan’s debt investments,

(iii) Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of the plan participants will increase the

plan’s liability.

(iv) Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after the
the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

ir employment. An increase in




(i)

Details of defined benefit obligations and plan assets (Gratuity)
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows :

CoPatieulam s e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
i R e LR el W e e e Ay e - S e R s L e e e ey e L o e e fo L e e W e O e e e
e A E: et e v ety e 2o A, : e e e ' 2 R | (e o At o et B e e

Change in defined benefit obligations:

Obligation at the beginning of the year 0.84 -
Current Service Cost 4.27 -
Interest Cost 0.06 -
Actuarial (Gain),/ Loss 0.32 -
Benefits Paid "

-':-.:ﬂhﬂgﬂﬁnﬁitﬂwundofﬂwﬁ&"f::f'3 e ST T iR T T e R

=

i L A WS e e S ey By i, 0
e ﬂlm“ o e i
OGS i et 3

S R

. March31,2025 | March31, 2024

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1.30
Interest income (L0
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) excluding amount included within employes benefit ex pense 0.16 -
Contributions by the Employer 6.07 -
Benefits Paid -

i Fairvalueof planassesattheendoftheyear = " 0 T ey T

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consist of:

Present Value of Obligation - i 5.50
Fair Value of Plan Assets (7.62) .

(2.12) -

Recognised as

Provision for Graluily (non-current)
Provision for Gratuily (current) (212) -

Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of:
| Mach3,2025 | March 31,2024

Employee benefits Exprnueu:

Currenl service cost 4.27 -
Net interest expense (0.03) s

4.24 -

Other comprehensive income
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in employes benefits exXpense (0.16) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumption ; 5
Actuarial (pain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumption 0.25 -
Actuarial (pain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.07 -

0.16 -

__ Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss S o Y S oL

The major categories of plans assets are as follows:

| March31,205 | March31, 20

Assel calegory

Insurance fund 7.62 -

Key assumptions used in the measurement of retiring gratuity is as below:

.-'--l'\---'--'- e e R e e A S e P B R e Seknooctorkoe. hosibocn Y RERRER ohormanhatis i,
e e e e g aact Lt o T

B DS e March 31,2025 | March 31,2024

Financial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.89'%
Rate of escalation in Salary 5.50%
Demographic Assumptions:
Rate of Employee Turnover 3.00%

Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives

Mortality 2012-14
{Urban)

e R R . March31, 2024

1st following year 0.m
2nd following year .01
3rd following year 0.02
4th following year 0.10
5th following year .46
Sum of year & To 10 2.30

Sum of Years 11 and above 1546

Footnotes
(i) The sensitivity analysis have boen determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(ii) The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representalive of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikel y that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

(iti) Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obli gation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

(iv) There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
(v) The Company has contribute Rs. 6.07 lakhs (PY Rs Nil lakhs } o delined benedit plan obligations funds for the year ended March 31, 2025,

(vi) Expected return on assets is determined by multiplying the opening fair value of the plan assels by the expected rate of return determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of expected
contributions & expecled settlements during the reporting period.

(vii) The Weighted Average Duration of the Plan works out to 8 years,

(viii) Asset Liability matching strategy:
The money contributed by the Company to the Gratuity fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested. The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to an
insurance Company. The insurance Company in turn manages these funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the

insurance regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type of investments that can be held by the fund, it is not possible to explicitly follow an asset liability matching strategy. There is no com pulsion on the part of
the Company to fully prefund the liability of the Plan.

Other long-term employee benefots
Annual Leave and Sick Leave assumptions

The liability towards compensated absences (annual leave and sick leave) for the year ended 31st March, 2025 based on actuarial valuation carried out by usin g Projected Accrued Benefit Method resulted in
liability of Rs. 4.57 lakhs.
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28.1

Defined contribution plans
Provident Fund

The company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made 1o provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made
the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognized

provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the company is limited
during the period towards defined contribution plan are Rs 8.21 lakhs (PY Rs 2.51 lakhs).

Lo

___________

e A
R

Depmﬂahun nrn. property plant and equipmeﬁl
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets

Depreciation on Intangible assets

Other Expenses

- T

- ol R

. -\..-EI lm . i

v o T g e m e N e e
R [E el

e o e A

1 |Electricity Expenses
2 Audit Foes

Details of Payment to Auditors
E'I'ﬂﬂ' b e e S

T ;r_....j.: P‘ﬂ‘ﬁllﬂnl o

~ March 31, 2025

Payment to Auditors
= For Etﬂtuturv Audit
- For Other Services - Certificate

0.40 -

Total

n-'!"u =

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS):

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Com pany

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable 1o equity shareholders of the Com

by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding du ring the year.

pany by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the we
to Equity shares,

number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares in

!“_ ..... __':h___..:_ : N'-ru'm.__""" ._ I_c"-. i o H‘"‘hnmﬁ L"iﬂ:hal,m
Net Profit available for Equity Shamfmlﬁém = : {5 llﬂ,} [ﬁ-ﬂ?}

No. of Equity Shares as per financial statement
Weighled average number of
Shares issued during current year)
Weighted average number of
Bonus Shares issued during current year)
Basic Earnings Per Share (in Rs)

Diluted Earnings Per Share {in Rs)

Equity Shares for Basic Earnings Per Share* (nos.) (Previous year numbers include Bonus

Equity Shares for Diluted Earni ngs Per Share** (nos.) (Previous year numbers include

17,053

(12.24)
(12.24)

Number of Sh

AR 0,

8 for Computation of EPS

e 5 oy i
R

e

.....

. A -

v

. ' o it o L -""___.'_. A e IR et L AL I = s
. - = - o e - - ettt e . e
2

........

Basic and Diluted EPS (in Nos)
Existing (Nos)
Right issue share -Fresh lssue
Optionally Convertible Preference Shares

Total Number of shares after conversion

Bonus Issue in Previous year
Bonus Issue in current year

Total Number of shares after Bonus issue

26,030 10,000
- 16,030
5,130 5130
31,160 31,160

31,160 31,160

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (To the extent not provided for)

Contingent Liabilities

S R
.'i-.-:-::,".; o L -
e

Income tax maltters

Labour laws related matters (ESIC)
Bank Guarantee

Corporale Guarantoe®

Total

1.00 -

omumitments

L ey :-.

- L R
Ry et TRy - E ;

(b)  |Letters of Credit and Bank puarantees issued

as at year end
Total

by bankers towards procurement of poods and

services and outstanding < -

iphted average
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(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Value and percentage of Raw
Materials and Stores and Spares For the year ended | For the year ended
(A) consumed: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Raw Materials

Indigenous

Percenatge (%) 100.00% 100.00%
Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 1.92 0.37
Imported

Percenatge (%) - -

Amount (Rs. in lakhs) - -
Total Raw Material Consumed 1.92 0.37

Stores & Spares
Indigenous

Percenatge (%) - -
Amount (Rs. in lakhs) - -

Imported
Percenatge (%) - -
Amount (Rs. in lakhs) - -

For the year ended | For the year ended

(B) C.LF Value of Import March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw Material - -
Capital Goods - -

For the year ended | For the year ended

(©)__Expenditure in Foreign Currency March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Travelling Expenses . .
Bank Charges a -
Comumission Expense - -
Others - -

For the year ended | For the year ended
(D) Earnings in Foreign Curren_cy March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

F.O.B Value of Expnrt - -

Additional regulatory information required by schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules
made thereunder,

The Company does not have any transactions or relationships with any companies struck off under Section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.
Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:

(1) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(i)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such
as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account,

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.




35 Ratio Analysis

22 R T Marh [ As atdstMarch | %Change [ Reasonforvariance
MR el e L e ] Y ] B .
1 |Current ratio 1.86 6.00 -69.06% | Current Assets increased more
than Current Liabilily . Current
Assets increased on account of
Increase in Bank Balances
Other than Cash & Cash
Equivalents and Balance with
Govt Authnrity
2 |Debt- Equity ratio 0.50 0.41 22.20%
3 |Debt Service Coverage ratio 0,00 |- 0.00 -279.75%|  Borrowings Increased on
account of Additional loan
taken
4 [Return on Equity ratio -0.04% -0.05% -19.59%
5 Imrentnry Turnover ratio 1.16 - 0.00
6 |Trade Receivable Turnover ratio 1.37 0.85 0.62
7 |Trade Payable Turnover ratio 0.00 0.01 -0.70
8 [Net Capital Turnover ratio 0.08% 0.07% 24.65%
9 |Net Profit ratio -252.48% -434.96% -41.95% | Net Loss is mainly on Account
of Depreciation,
10 |Return on Capital Employed -0.04 % -0.03% 28.76%| Average Capital Employed
increased and net loss is
mainly on account of
Depreciation




